
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,  
U.S. Attorney’s Office for the District of Columbia 
555 Fourth Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20530, 
  
  Plaintiff, 
 
 v. 
 
BIASSI BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. 
942 Woodfield Road 
West Hempstead, NY 11552 
 
  Defendant. 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Civil Action No. 13-0853 
 
 

 
UNITED STATES’ LOBBYING DISCLOSURE ACT COMPLAINT  

FOR CIVIL PENALTIES OR FINES 

1. The United States brings this action against the Defendant, an entity doing 

business as Biassi Business Services, Inc. (“BBSI”), under the Lobbying Disclosure Act 

(“LDA”), 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq., seeking a civil penalty or fine. 

2. The Government alleges that BBSI knowingly failed to comply with the periodic 

reporting requirements of the LDA and to remedy delinquent filings after being notified by the 

Secretary of the U.S. Senate (the “Senate”) and the Clerk of the U.S. House of Representatives 

(the “House”). 

3. As such, and because BBSI has failed to remedy its unlawful actions despite a 

plethora of notices from the House, Senate, and the U.S. Attorney’s Office, the United States 

brings this action.   
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JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND PARTIES 

4. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C.  

§ 1345, as this action is brought by the United States; 28 U.S.C. § 2461(a), as the United States 

seeks to recover a civil penalty or fine prescribed for the violation of an Act of Congress; and 28 

U.S.C. § 1331, as this case arises under the laws of the United States.   

5. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant and venue is proper in this 

District under 2 U.S.C. § 1605(a)(8), which contemplates the LDA will be enforced by the U.S. 

Attorney’s Office for the District of Columbia, and 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2), as a substantial part 

of the events and omissions giving rise to the claims in this action occurred within the District of 

Columbia. 

6. Plaintiff, the United States of America, through the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the 

District of Columbia brings this action pursuant to its statutorily contemplated authority to 

enforce the registration and reporting requirements of the LDA.   

7. Defendant Biassi Business Services, Inc. is a business whose principal place of 

business and last known address is 942 Woodfield Road, West Hempstead, NY 11552.   

8. Although BBSI’s name purports to identify it as an incorporated entity, the United 

States has been unable to identify any state of incorporation for BBSI despite a reasonable search 

of state corporation records.  As such, it is the Government’s information and belief that BBSI is 

an unincorporated business entity owned and operated by its principals, which the United States 

understands include Mensah A. Biassi and Patricia Ann Biassi. 
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STATUTORY FRAMEWORK 

9. The LDA requires individual lobbyists and lobbying firms or organizations 

employing in-house lobbyists (i.e., “registrants”) to provide periodic reports of lobbying activity 

to the House and Senate.  See 2 U.S.C. § 1604(a)-(d). 

10. The LDA was amended effective January 1, 2008, by the Honest Leadership and 

Open Government Act of 2007 (“HLOGA”) to require more frequent reports of lobbying activity 

and the filing of semiannual reports detailing contribution activities. 

11. As of January 1, 2008, registrants are required to file quarterly reports of lobbying 

activity for each of their clients on LD-2 forms with the Secretary of the Senate and Clerk of the 

House.  2 U.S.C. § 1604(a)-(c).  These LD-2 reports are due “no later than 20 days after the end 

of the quarterly period beginning on the first day of January, April, July, and October of each 

year in which a registrant is registered . . ., or on the first business day after such 20th day if the 

20th day is not a business day[.]”  2 U.S.C. § 1604(a). 

12. Further, as of January 1, 2008, individual lobbyists and registrants are required to 

file semi-annual reports of contribution activities on LD-203 forms with the Secretary of the 

Senate and Clerk of the House.  2 U.S.C. § 1604(d).  These LD-203 reports are due “not later 

than 30 days after the end of the semiannual period beginning on the first day of January and 

July of each year, or on the first business day after such 30th day if the 30th day is not a business 

day[.]”  2 U.S.C. § 1604(d)(1). 

13. The LDA also requires registrants to file termination reports should they cease to 

represent a client and amended registration statements to add or subtract a registrant’s active 

lobbyists.  2 U.S.C. § 1603(d); see also 2 U.S.C. § 1604(d). 
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BBSI’S FAILURE TO FILE REQUIRED LD-2 AND LD-203 REPORTS 

I. BBSI Files Lobbying Registration Statements with the House and Senate. 

14. On or about September 1, 2001, BBSI filed a lobbying registration statement with 

the House and Senate registering itself as a lobbying firm and identifying The Africa Committee, 

Inc. as its sole client. 

15. BBSI’s September 2001 registration statement identified Mensah A. Biassi and 

Patricia Ann Biassi as the points of contact for BBSI and the lobbyists employed by BBSI.   

16. Mensah A. Biassi as CEO of BBSI signed the September 2001 registration 

statement. 

17. On February 28, 2009, BBSI filed an amended registration statement.  This 

amended registration statement continued to identify BBSI as a lobbying firm and its sole client 

as The Africa Committee, Inc. 

18. BBSI’s February 2009 amended registration statement continued to list Mensah 

A. Biassi and Patricia Ann Biassi as lobbyists and identified three additional persons employed 

by BBSI as lobbyists, namely (i) Kouevi Adamah, (ii) Koffi Feliz Houngbeke, and (iii) Bright 

Ekue Adamah-Biassi.   

19. Mensah A. Biassi as Associate Director of BBSI signed BBSI’s February 2009 

amended registration statement. 

II. In Mid-2009, BBSI Begins Its Habitual Practice of Knowingly Failing to Timely File 
LD-2 Reports and Failing to Correct Delinquent Reports After Notice. 

20. Shortly after BBSI’s amended registration, BBSI began to be delinquent in filing 

its required LD-2 reports.   

21. BBSI failed to file timely its Senate and House LD-2 reports for the first quarter 

of 2009, which were due on Monday, April 20, 2009. 
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22. Consequently, on or about May 12, 2009, the Secretary of the Senate wrote BBSI 

providing notice of its violation and demanding that BBSI remedy its delinquency within 60 

days.   

23. Presumably in response to the Senate’s notice, BBSI filed its first quarter 2009 

LD-2 reports with the House and Senate on May 12, 2009. 

24. If BBSI was otherwise unaware of the post-HLOGA LD-2 filing requirements of 

the LDA, this exchange in May 2009 plainly made BBSI aware of them.   

25. Further, BBSI has received numerous similar delinquency notices from the House 

and Senate since May 2009, which made BBSI well aware of its LD-2 filing obligations. 

A. BBSI Knowingly Failed to File Twenty-Eight Quarterly LD-2 Reports on a 
Timely Basis. 

26. Despite BBSI’s knowledge of the LDA LD-2 filing requirements, after May 2009 

BBSI committed numerous separate violations of them. 

27. Specifically, despite its plain knowledge of the post-HLOGA LD-2 filing 

requirements, BBSI failed to file timely LD-2 reports for the following fourteen (14) quarters, 

totaling twenty-eight (28) delinquent reports: 

a. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the second quarter of 2009 were due to the House and 
Senate on Monday, July 20, 2009, but BBSI did not file them until February 5, 
2010; 

b. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the third quarter of 2009 were due to the House and 
Senate on Tuesday, September 20, 2009, but BBSI did not file them until 
February 5, 2010; 

c. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the fourth quarter of 2009 were due to the House and 
Senate on Wednesday, January 20, 2010, but BBSI did not file them until 
February 5, 2010; 

d. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the second quarter of 2010 were due to the House and 
Senate on Tuesday, July 20, 2010, but BBSI has not filed them to date; 
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e. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the third quarter of 2010 were due to the House and 
Senate on Wednesday, October 20, 2010, but BBSI did not file them until April 
22, 2011; 

f. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the fourth quarter of 2010 were due to the House and 
Senate on Thursday, January 20, 2011, but BBSI did not file them until April 22, 
2011; 

g. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the first quarter of 2011 were due to the House and 
Senate on Wednesday, April 20, 2011, but BBSI did not file them until April 27, 
2011; 

h. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the second quarter of 2011 were due to the House and 
Senate on Wednesday, July 20, 2011, but BBSI did not file them until November 
3, 2011; 

i. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the third quarter of 2011 were due to the House and 
Senate on Thursday, October 20, 2010, but BBSI did not file them until 
November 3, 2011; 

j. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the fourth quarter of 2011 were due to the House and 
Senate on Friday, January 20, 2012, but BBSI did not its House report until 
January 27, 2012, and has yet as of this date to file its Senate report for this 
quarter;  

k. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the first quarter of 2012 were due to the House and 
Senate on Friday, April 20, 2012, but BBSI has not filed them to date; 

l. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the second quarter of 2012 were due to the House and 
Senate on Friday, July 20, 2012, but BBSI has not filed them to date; 

m. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the third quarter of 2012 were due to the House and 
Senate on Monday, October 22, 2012, but BBSI has not filed them to date; and 

n. BBSI’s LD-2 reports for the fourth quarter of 2012 were due to the House and 
Senate on Tuesday, January 22, 2013, but BBSI has not filed them to date. 

B. Additionally, Thirteen Occasions Failed to Remedy Its Delinquent LD-2 
Filings Within 60 Days of Receiving Notice from the House or Senate. 

28. Not only did BBSI fail to file the above noted LD-2 reports on a timely basis, but 

for a number of these LD-2 reports, BBSI also failed to file them within 60 days of receiving 

delinquency notices from the House and Senate. 
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29. Specifically, BBSI failed to file LD-2 reports within 60 days of receiving 

delinquency notices from the House and Senate on the following thirteen (13) occasions: 

a. On August 21, 2009, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent Senate 
LD-2 report for the second quarter of 2009 and demanded that BBSI file it within 
60 days (i.e., by Tuesday, October 20, 2009).  BBSI did not file this report until 
February 5, 2010; 

b. On November 10, 2009, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent 
Senate LD-2 report for the third quarter of 2009 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Monday, January 11, 2010).  BBSI did not file this report 
until February 5, 2010; 

c. On December 4, 2009, the House wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent House 
LD-2 report for the third quarter of 2009 and demanded that BBSI file it within 60 
days (i.e., by Tuesday, February 2, 2010).  BBSI did not file this report until 
February 5, 2010; 

d. On September 7, 2010, the House wrote BBSI’s regarding its then-delinquent 
House LD-2 report for the second quarter of 2010 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Monday, November 8, 2010).  BBSI has yet to file this 
report; 

e. On October 22, 2010, the Senate wrote BBSI’s regarding its then-delinquent 
Senate LD-2 report for the second quarter of 2010 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Tuesday, December 21, 2010).  BBSI has yet to file this 
report; 

f. On December 8, 2010, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent 
Senate LD-2 report for the third quarter of 2010 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Monday, February 7, 2011).  BBSI did not file this report 
until April 22, 2011; 

g. On December 10, 2010, the House wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent 
House LD-2 report for the third quarter of 2010 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Tuesday, February 8, 2011).  BBSI did not file this report 
until April 22, 2011; 

h. On June 22, 2012, the House wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent House 
LD-2 report for the first quarter of 2012 and demanded that BBSI file it within 60 
days (i.e., by Tuesday, August 21, 2012).  BBSI has yet to file this report; 

i. On July 6, 2012, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent Senate LD-
2 report for the fourth quarter of 2011 and demanded that BBSI file it within 60 
days (i.e., by Tuesday, September 4, 2012).  BBSI has yet to file this report; 
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j. On July 17, 2012, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent Senate 
LD-2 report for the first quarter of 2012 and demanded that BBSI file it within 60 
days (i.e., by Monday, September 17, 2012).  BBSI has yet to file this report; 

k. On August 20, 2012, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent Senate 
LD-2 report for the second quarter of 2012 and demanded that BBSI file it within 
60 days (i.e., by Friday, October 19, 2012).  BBSI has yet to file this report; 

l. On September 14, 2012, the House wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent 
House LD-2 report for the second quarter of 2012 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Tuesday, November 13, 2012).  BBSI has yet to file this 
report; and 

m. On December 12, 2012, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent 
Senate LD-2 report for the third quarter of 2012 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Monday, February 11, 2013).  BBSI has yet to file this 
report. 

III. BBSI’s LDA Violations Spread to Include Failures to File LD-203 Reports for Itself, 
as a Registrant, and Its Employed Lobbyists.  

30. BBSI’s LDA filing delinquencies were not limited to LD-2 reports.  Instead, 

BBSI also habitually ignored its obligation to file LD-203 contribution reports on its own behalf 

and on behalf of its employed lobbyists.  

31. Specifically, despite receiving numerous notices from the House and Senate 

regarding BBSI’s failures to file LD-203 reports, BBSI failed to file timely LD-203 reports for 

the following eight (8) semiannual periods, totaling ninety-six (96) delinquent reports: 

a. BBSI’s own LD-203 reports for the first half of 2009 were due to the House and 
Senate on Thursday, July 30, 2009, but BBSI did not file these reports until 
February 12, 2010; 

b. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the first half of 2009 for Mensah A. Biassi, one of its 
employed lobbyists, were due to the House and Senate on Thursday, July 30, 
2009, but BBSI did not file these reports until February 6, 2010; 

c. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the first half of 2009 for its remaining four employed 
lobbyists were due to the House and Senate on Thursday, July 30, 2009, but BBSI 
has not filed these reports to date;  

d. BBSI’s own LD-203 reports for the second half of 2009 were due to the House 
and Senate on Monday, February 1, 2010, but BBSI did not file these reports until 
February 12, 2010; 
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e. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the second half of 2009 for Mensah A. Biassi, one of 
its employed lobbyists, were due to the House and Senate on Monday, February 1, 
2010, but BBSI did not file these reports until February 6, 2010; 

f. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the second half of 2009 for its remaining four 
employed lobbyists were due to the House and Senate on Monday, February 1, 
2010, but BBSI has not filed these reports to date;  

g. BBSI’s own LD-203 reports for the first half of 2010 were due to the House and 
Senate on Friday, July 30, 2010, but BBSI did not file these reports until August 
6, 2010; 

h. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the first half of 2010 for Mensah A. Biassi, one of its 
employed lobbyists, were due to the House and Senate on Friday, July 30, 2010, 
but BBSI did not file these reports until August 6, 2010; 

i. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the first half of 2010 for its remaining four employed 
lobbyists were due to the House and Senate on Friday, July 30, 2010, but BBSI 
has not filed these reports to date;  

j. BBSI’s own LD-203 reports for the second half of 2010 were due to the House 
and Senate on Monday, January 31, 2011, but BBSI did not file these reports until 
April 22, 2011; 

k. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the second half of 2010 for Mensah A. Biassi, one of 
its employed lobbyists, were due to the House and Senate on Monday, January 31, 
2011, but BBSI did not file these reports until April 27, 2011; 

l. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the second half of 2010 for its remaining four 
employed lobbyists were due to the House and Senate on Monday, January 31, 
2011, but BBSI has not filed these reports to date;  

m. BBSI’s own LD-203 reports for the first half of 2011 were due to the House and 
Senate on Monday, August 1, 2011, but BBSI did not file these reports until 
November 3, 2011; 

n. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the first half of 2011 for Mensah A. Biassi, one of its 
employed lobbyists, were due to the House and Senate on Monday, August 1, 
2011, but BBSI did not file these reports until November 3, 2011; 

o. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the first half of 2011 for its remaining four employed 
lobbyists were due to the House and Senate on Monday, August 1, 2011, but 
BBSI has not filed these reports to date;  

p. BBSI’s own LD-203 reports for the second half of 2011 were due to the House 
and Senate on Monday, January 30, 2012, but BBSI has not filed these reports to 
date; 
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q. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the second half of 2011 for Mensah A. Biassi, one of 
its employed lobbyists, were due to the House and Senate on Monday, January 30, 
2012, but BBSI did not file these reports until February 22, 2012; 

r. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the second half of 2011 for its remaining four 
employed lobbyists were due to the House and Senate on Monday, January 30, 
2012, but BBSI has not filed these reports to date;  

s. BBSI’s own LD-203 reports for the first half of 2012 were due to the House and 
Senate on Monday, July 30, 2012, but BBSI has not filed these reports to date; 

t. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the first half of 2012 for its five employed lobbyists 
were due to the House and Senate on Monday, July 30, 2012, but BBSI has not 
filed these reports to date; 

u. BBSI’s own LD-203 reports for the second half of 2012 were due to the House 
and Senate on Wednesday, January 30, 2013, but BBSI has not filed these reports 
to date; 

v. BBSI’s LD-203 reports for the second half of 2012 for its five employed lobbyists 
were due to the House and Senate on Wednesday, January 30, 2013, but BBSI has 
not filed these reports to date. 

32. Not only did BBSI fail to file the above noted LD-203 reports on a timely basis, 

but for a number of these LD-203 reports, BBSI also failed to file them within 60 days of 

receiving delinquency notices from the House and Senate. 

33. Specifically, BBSI failed to file LD-203 reports within 60 days of receiving 

delinquency notices from the House and Senate on the following occasions, totaling twenty-eight 

(28) reports BBSI failed to file within 60 days of notice: 

a. On September 1, 2009, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its own then-delinquent 
Senate LD-203 report for the first half of 2009 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Friday, October 30, 2009).  BBSI did not file this report 
until February 12, 2010; 

b. On September 28, 2009, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent 
Senate LD-203 reports for the first half of 2009 for its five employed lobbyists 
and demanded that BBSI file these missing reports within 60 days (i.e., by Friday, 
November 27, 2009).  BBSI did not file its LD-203 report for Mensah A. Biassi 
until February 6, 2010, and has yet to file the remaining four reports; 

c. On May 26, 2010, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent Senate 
LD-203 reports for the second half of 2009 for four of its five employed lobbyists 
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and demanded that BBSI file these missing reports within 60 days (i.e., by 
Monday, July 26, 2010).  BBSI has yet to file these four reports; 

d. On April 12, 2011, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent Senate 
LD-203 reports for the first half of 2010 for four of its five employed lobbyists 
and demanded that BBSI file these missing reports within 60 days (i.e., by 
Monday, June 13, 2011).  BBSI has yet to file these four reports; 

e. On September 23, 2011, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent 
Senate LD-203 reports for the second half of 2010 for four of its five employed 
lobbyists and demanded that BBSI file these missing reports within 60 days (i.e., 
by Tuesday, November 22, 2011).  BBSI has yet to file these four reports; 

f. On April 23, 2012, the House wrote BBSI regarding its own then-delinquent 
House LD-203 report for the second half of 2011 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Friday, June 22, 2012).  BBSI has yet to file this report; 

g. On April 23, 2012, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent Senate 
LD-203 reports for the first half of 2011 for four of its five employed lobbyists 
and demanded that BBSI file these missing reports within 60 days (i.e., by Friday, 
June 22, 2012).  BBSI has yet to file these four reports; 

h. On October 17, 2012, the Senate wrote BBSI regarding its then-delinquent Senate 
LD-203 reports for the second half of 2011 for four of its five employed lobbyists 
and demanded that BBSI file these missing reports within 60 days (i.e., by 
Monday, December 17, 2012).  BBSI has yet to file these four reports; and 

i. On November 26, 2012, the House wrote BBSI regarding its own then-delinquent 
House LD-203 report for the first half of 2012 and demanded that BBSI file it 
within 60 days (i.e., by Friday, January 25, 2013).  BBSI has yet to file this report. 

*     *     * 

34. Additionally, BBSI has ignored or failed to respond to numerous letters sent by 

the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the District of Columbia to BBSI regarding its LDA violations. 

COUNT I -- LDA -- KNOWINGLY FAILING TO COMPLY 
2 U.S.C. § 1606(a)(2)  

35. The United States incorporates by reference the allegations set for in Paragraphs 1 

to 34 above as if fully set forth herein. 
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36. As described above, BBSI is a registrant under the LDA and since 2008 has been 

required by the provisions of the LDA to file quarterly LD-2 reports of its lobbying activity and 

semiannual LD-203 reports of its contributions and those of its lobbyists. 

37. BBSI knew of its filing obligations under the LDA by, inter alia, filing timely 

LDA reports on occasion and receiving a plethora of correspondence regarding the requirements 

from the House, Senate, and U.S. Attorney’s Office. 

38. Despite its knowledge of its filing obligations, BBSI knowingly failed to comply 

with the LDA provisions requiring timely quarterly LD-2 reports on twenty-eight (28) separate 

occasions and knowingly failed to comply with the LDA provisions requiring timely semiannual 

LD-203 reports on ninety-six (96) separate occasions. 

39. Accordingly, pursuant to Section 1606(a)(2) of Title 2 of the United States Code, 

BBSI is subject to a civil penalty or fine of not more than $200,000 for each of its one hundred 

and twenty-four (124) knowing violations of the LDA reporting requirements. 

COUNT II -- LDA -- KNOWINGLY FAILING TO REMEDY 
2 U.S.C. § 1606(a)(2)  

40. The United States incorporates by reference the allegations set for in Paragraphs 1 

to 39 above as if fully set forth herein. 

41. As described above, BBSI is a registrant under the LDA and since 2008 has been 

required by the provisions of the LDA to file quarterly LD-2 reports of its lobbying activity and 

semiannual LD-203 reports of its contributions and those of its lobbyists. 

42. On numerous occasions, BBSI became delinquent with its LD-2 and LD-203 

filing requirements and the Secretary of the Senate and Clerk of the House notified BBSI of its 

delinquencies. 
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43. Despite these notifications, and BBSI’s knowledge of its reporting obligations 

under the LDA, on thirteen (13) occasions BBSI failed to file delinquent LD-2 reports within 60 

days of notice and on twenty-eight (28) occasions BBSI failed to file delinquent LD-203 reports 

within 60 days of notice. 

44. Accordingly, pursuant to Section 1606(a)(1) of Title 2 of the United States Code, 

BBSI is subject to a civil penalty or fine of not more than $200,000 for each of its forty-one (41) 

knowing failures to remedy a defective filing within 60 days after notice. 

 

*     *     * 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, the United States requests that this Court enter judgment in its favor and 

award it the following relief: 

A. Civil penalties or fines pursuant to the Lobbying Disclosure Act for each knowing 

failure to comply and each knowing failure to remedy a defective filing within 60 

days of notice not to exceed $200,000 per violation; 

B. Interest, costs, and other recoverable expenses permitted by law; and    

C. Such other relief as may be just and appropriate. 

 
Dated: June 7, 2013 
 Washington, DC 
 Respectfully submitted,  

 
RONALD C. MACHEN JR., D.C. Bar #447889 
United States Attorney 

  
DANIEL F. VAN HORN, D.C. Bar #924092 
Chief, Civil Division 
 
 
By: /s/ 

BRIAN P. HUDAK  
Assistant United States Attorney 
555 Fourth Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20530  
(202) 514-7143 

 
Attorneys for Plaintiff United States of America 
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Defendant (lndicate Citizenshrp of

Parties in item U)

IIl. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (pLACE AN x rN oNE Box FoR
PLAINTIFF AND ONE BOX FOR DEFENDANT) FOR DIVERSITY CASES ONLY!

PTF Dt-I

Incorporated or Prrncrpal Place 0 + O +

of Busrness in This State

IncorporatedandPrrncrpal Q s Qs
Place ofBusrness rn Another Stale

ForeignNatron Qo Oo

Citizen of this Stale

Citizen of Another State

Citizen or Subject ofa
Foreign Country

PTF DFT

Or Or

Oz Oz

Or O:

IV. CASE ASSIGNMENT AND NATURE OF SUIT
an X in one category, A-N, that best re ause ofAction and one in a corresDondins Nature ofSu

O A. Antitrusl

l_llto Antirust

O B, Personal Injury/
Malpraclice

J-lrto Airptane
l-l f lS Airplane Product Liability
l-l fZO Assault, Libel & Slander
l_l33o Federal Employers Liability

[ 3lo Marine
l-l 345 Marine Product Liability
l_l fso Motor Ve hicle

l-l f ss Motor Vehicle Producl Liability
l-l:oo other Personal lnjury
l_l fOz Medical Malpractice
l-] fOS Product Liabilify
l-l lOz Health Care/Pharmaceulical

Personal Injury Producl Liability

f]fOS Asbestos Producl Liability

O C. Administrative Agency
Review

I_..l lst Medicare Act

Social Security
I--'l art HrA (r39srf)

I_l aOz Black Lung (923)

I-l sor Drwc/Drww (4os(g))

I_l sft sstD Tirre xvl
J--'l sos Rst (aos(g))

Other Stotutes
l-l tsl Agricultural Acls
I-l E93 Environmenlal Matters

I fm Other Statutory Actions (lf
Administrative Agency is

I nvolved)

O D. Temporary Restraining
Order/Preliminary
Injunction

Any nalure of suil from any category
may be selecled for this category ofcase
assignment.

*(lfAntitrust, then A governs)*

O E. GeneralCivil (Other) OR O F. Pro Se General Civil
Real Prooerfv
l-l ZtO Land Condemnation

l-l zzo Foreclosure

l-l ZfO Rent, Lease & Ejectment
l_l ZIO Torts to Land
l_lZlS Tort Product Liability
l-1290 All Other Real Property

Personal Property
l--'lfzo other Fraud

Ifzt Truth in Lending
l_l fSO Olher Personal Property

Drmage

EfSS Property Damage

Product Liability

Ba n kruotcv
lqZZ Appcal 27 USC 158

l_llzr wirhdranal 2E USC

Prisoner Petilions
EIsrsTiaiIEnarty
E slo Mandamus & other
l_l sso Civir Rights
l_l sss Prison Conditions
l_l soo Civil Detainee - Conditions

of Confinement

Pron€rtv Riphls

-

I 1820 Copl'rights

E 830 Patent
l_l tlo Trademark

Federal Tax Suits
l--l 870 Taxes (US plaintiff or

defe nda n t)

l-l Azt IRS-Third Par(v 26 USC 7609

Forfeitu re/Pena lty
Ers D-s R.lrted Seizure of

Property 2l USC 8El

l-l690 ott e.

Othcr Statutes

E375 False Claims Act
l-l mO State Reapportionmcnt

ElfO Banks & Banking

ElsO Commerce/lCC
Ra tes/etc.

l-1460 Deportation

-462 
Naturelizetion
Application

f:] 465 Other lmmigration
Actions

E470 Racketeer lnfluenced
& Corrupl Organization

l_..l$O Consumer Credit
J-']lso cabre/Sateilire TV
f] ASO Sec urities/Commodities/

Excha nge

EASO Arbitration
l-l ASS Adminislrative Procedure

Act/Review or Appeal of
Agency Decision

ESSO Constitutionality of State

Sta tu tes

[7] ASO Other Statutory Actions
(if not rdminislralive agency

review or Privacy Act)
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O C. Habeas Corpus/
22s5

E SfO Habeas Corpus - Generrl
E SIO Motion/Vscate Sentence
l_l OOf Habeas Corpus - Alien

DetNinee

O H. Employmenl
Discrimination

l- 442 Civil Rights - Employmenl
(criteria: race, gender/sex,

national origin,
discrimination, disability, age,

religion, retaliation)

r(If pro se, selecl this deck)*

O I foutPrivocy Act

l-] E95 Frecdom of lnformation Act
J-l E90 Other Strtutory Actions

(if Privacy Acl)

*(If pro se, selecl lhis deck)*

o J. Studenl Loun

E ISZ Recoverv of Defaulled
Student l,oan
(excluding veteruns)

O K. Lobor/ERISA
(non-employmenl)

E7l0 Fair Labor Standards Act

El720 Lrbor/Mgmt. Relations

E740 Labor Railway Act

IzSl Ramily and Medical
Lerve Act

E790 Other Labor Litigrtion
Izet Empl. Ret. tnc. Security Act

O U Oner Civit Rights
(non-employmenl)

[-.I441 Yoting (if not Voting Rights

Act)

I-l 443 Housing/Accommodations

I_l,tlo other Civil Rights

l-1445 Americans w/Disabilities -
Employment

I_l gO Americans w/Disabilities -
Other

I-l44s Educution

O U. Conlract

I t to Insurance

! 120 Marine
l-l tlo Miiler Acr
l-] t+O Negotiable Instrumenl

I tSO Recovery ofOverpayment
& Enforcement of
Judgmenl

l-l tSS Recovery of Overpayment
of Veteran's Benefils

f:] 160 Stockholder's Suits

I-l 190 Other Contracts

E 195 Contract Product Liabilify

E 196 Franchise

O N. Three-Judge
Court

I_l llt civit Righrs - voring
(if Voting Rights Act)

Q 6Multi-dist.ict QTAppert to
Litigation District Judge

from Mag. Judge

V. ORIGIN

@ toriginal Q2Remand Q 3Remandedfrom
Proceeding from State Appellate Court

Courl

O4 Reinstat€d or Q 5 Transferred from
Reopened anolher district

(spccify)

vI. cAUSE OF ACTION (ct'tf, THE u.s. CrvrL STATUTE UNDER WHrCH YOU ARE FTLTNG AND wRrTE A BRrEF'STATEMENT OF CAUSE.)

Lobbying Disclosure Act, 2 U.S.C. S 1601, et seq., civil fines for failing to comply with LDA periodic reporting requirements

DEMAND 5 TBD
JURY DEMAND:

\/il. REQUESTED tN
(]OMPLAINT

CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS
ACTION UNDER F RC P 23

Check YES onlv tf demanded rn comolarnt

YEs l-l No [El
VIII. RELATED CASE(S)

IF ANY

(Scc instruction) YESrl >gtE Ifyes, plete related case form

DArE: 61712013 SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECOR

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET JS-44
Authority for Civil Covcr Sheet

The JS-44 civrl cover sheet and the rnlormation contained herern neither replaces nor supplements the tilrngs and servrces ofpleadrngs or other papers as required
bylaw,exceptasprovrdedbylocal rulesofcourt Thisform,approvedbytheJudicial ConferenceoftheUnitedStatesrnSeptemberl9T4,rsrequrredl'ortheuseofthe
ClerkolCourtforthepurposeofrnitratingthecivil docketsheet Consequently,acivil coversheetissubmitledtotheClerkofCourtloreachcivil complarntfiled
Lisled below are tips tbr completrng the civil cover sheet These tips coincrde with the Roman Numerals on lhe cover sheet

I. COLINTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED PLAINTIFF/DEFENDANT (b) County of resrdence: Use I l00l to indicate plaintiffif resident
of Wash rnglon, DC. 88 8 8 8 if plaintiff rs restdent of United States but not Washington, DC, and 99999 rf plarntil'f is outside the Un rted States

lll. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES: This section is completed only if diversity of crtizenshrp was selected as the Basis of Jurrsdictron
under Sectron II

lV. CASE ASSIGNMENT AND NATURE OF SUIT: The assignment of a judge to your case wrll depend on the calegory you select that best
represents the primarv cause of action found tn your complaint You may select only one category You musl also select q49 corresponding
nature ofsutt found under the category ofthe case

Vl, CAUSEOFACTION: CitetheUS Civil Statuteunderwhichyouarefilingandwriteabriefstatementofthepnmarycause

VllI. RELATED CASE(S), IF ANY: If you indicated that there is a related case, you must complete a related case tbrm, whrch may be obtained fiom
the Clerk's Offrce

Because ofthe need for accurate and complete infbrmation, you should endure the accuracy ofthe information provided prror to signing the form
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AO 440 (Rev 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

Uursn SrRrps Dtsrrucr CoURT
for the

District of Columbia

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Plaintffis)

BIASSI BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. )
)
)
)

)
)

)
)
)

] cirit Action No. 13-0853
)

)

De/endant(s)

SUMMONS IN A CryIL ACTION

To: (Defendant's nqme and address) BIASSI BUSINESS SERVICES, lNC.
c/o Mensah A. Biassi or Patricia Ann Biassi
942 Woodfield Road
West Hempstead, NY 11552

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 2l days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) - or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) - you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule I 2 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff s attorney,
whose name and address are: BRIAN P. HUDAK

U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of Columbia
555 Fourth Street, NW
Washington, DC 20530
brian. hudak@usdoj. gov

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 13-0853

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be Jiled wilh the court unless rcquired by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (0)

This summonsfor lname of individualandtitle, ilany) BIASSI BUSINESS SERVICES, lNC.

was received by me on (date)

D I personally served the summons on the individual at @loce)

on (date)

D I left the summons at the individual's residence or usual place of abode with hame)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual's last known address; or

D I served the summons on (name of individual)

designated by law to accept service ofprocess on behalfof (name oforganization)

on (date)

D I returned the summons unexecuted because

O Other 6pecify):

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Seryer's signalure

Printed name and title

Semer's address

;or

, who is

;or

;or

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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